APPROVED 4-20-21

MINUTES
TOWN OF TOPSHAM
PLANNING BOARD MEETING
HELD VIA ZOOM FROM INDIVIDUAL RESIDENCES
APRIL 6, 2021 — 7:00 P.M.

MEMBERS PRESENT: Don Spann
Scott Libby
Ronald Bisson
Larry Brann
Dan Flaig
Bruce Van Note

MEMBERS ABSENT: Joshua Spooner

STAFF PRESENT: Director of Planning and Development, Rod Melanson; and
Assistant Town Planner, Andrew Deci.

A. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

Chairman Spann called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. The recording secretary took the roll
call and noted that all members were present, except for Mr. Spooner, who had been excused.

Town Meeting Information

Town Planner Melanson reported that the Board of Selectmen voted to change the Town Meeting
date and place from May 19, 2021 to June 2, 2021 (with rain date June 3, 2021) utilizing a drive-
in format, at the Topsham Fairgrounds.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE MARCH 2, 2021 MEETING

Motion was made by Mr. Brann, seconded by Mr. Flaig, and it was unanimously

VOTED
To approve the minutes of the March 2, 2021 meeting as written.

B. OLD BUSINESS — None noted.

C. NEW BUSINESS

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES Page 1 of 5
APRIL 6, 2021



APPROVED 4-20-21

PUBLIC HEARING

PROPOSED ORDIANCE AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 225; CHAPTER 185;
CHAPTER 175; CHAPTER 191 THAT REVISES THE WAIVER STANDARDS AND
PROCEDURES TO PROVIDE CONSISTENT STANDARDS AND PROCEDURES
ACROSS MULTIPLE CHAPTERS

Planner Melanson reviewed the proposed ordinance amendments (copy of same was included
in the Board package for review prior to the meeting). The changes basically consolidate the
language to be clearer and more concise across multiple chapters. The changes were discussed
during several Planning Board workshops.

Board member Van Note asked if the proposed changes have been reviewed by the Town
Attorney. Mr. Melanson responded that they had, with no major changes suggested.

The Public Hearing was declared open. There being no one wishing to comment, the Hearing
was declared closed.

Motion was made by Mr. Libby, seconded by Mr. Bisson, and it was unanimously

VOTED
To put forth the proposed ordinance amendments as written to Chapter 225, 185, 175 and
191 to the Board of Selectmen for inclusion on the Warrant for Town Meeting with a
recommendation from the Planning Board of “Ought to Pass.”

D. PROJECT REVIEWS

1. Life Storage, LP is requesting site plan approval for a self-storage facility at 3 Sand
Hill Road, Tax Map RO05, Lots 21DOO7B (Re-approval of an expired plan).

Planner Melanson spoke to this item saying it is a re-approval of an expired site plan which
was approved in February of 2020. The applicant was waiting fora MDEP Stormwater Permit,
which they received this past March. Mr. Melanson said there were no changes to the plan
from that approved in February of 2020.

Motion was made by Mr. Libby, seconded by Mr. Bisson, and it was unanimously

VOTED
To approve the site plan application amendment for Life Storage LP for the development
of Tax Map RO05, Lot 007B with staff recommended conditions, as identified in the staff
memo dated March 30, 2021 as the Board finds that the application meets the applicable
standards of Section 175-8 and Chapter 225 of the Topsham Code.

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES Page 2 of 5
APRIL 6, 2021



APPROVED 4-20-21

2. Mallett Woods, LLC is requesting final plan approval for an 18-Lot subdivision, Tax
Map U21, Lot 65.

Chris Belanger from Sitelines represented the applicant, Dan Catlin. Mr. Belanger said
originally Mallet Woods, LLC was requesting subdivision approval for an 18-lot subdivision
off of Forest Glen Lane. However, the applicant has decided to modify their plan for phasing
to only request approval of the first 7 lots, as shown on 3a on the plans. Mr. Belanger said, if
granted approval by the Board, the applicant will seek final approval of the remaining lots at a
future Planning Board meeting.

Mr. Belanger gave a power point presentation of the Phase 3a plan. He said Plan 2 was
completed several years ago. The 7 lots will be on Forest Glen Lane which will eventually
connect to a contiguous through road for Phase 3b. It was noted that Town peer reviewer Tom
Saucier has reviewed the plans. The utility plan showed driveways and utility stubs for all lots.
The road was widened from 18’ to 20’ and the sidewalks were also widened. A General
grading plan was also shown as well as a conceptual design. Pond Plan was completed by a
surveyor and shows how drainage will be maintained.

The meeting was opened to questions from the Board. Mr. Bisson asked if a blasting permit
had been obtained. Mr. Belanger said they had not yet asked for the permit. It was noted that
no blasting can be done until a permit is requested and all abutters are notified and a public
hearing held. Mr. Flaig asked what was the reason the applicant scaled back to plan 3a only
and not to do 3b at this time. Mr. Belanger said that building materials are difficult to get at
this time and only doing 7 sites at this time was a business decision. When question was asked
regarding stormwater, Mr. Belanger said the 3a will be sent to a level spreader.

Question was asked if Peer Reviewer Tom Sawyer’s memo had been received. Mr. Belanger
said the memo was not received until last night and that 95% of comments made by Mr. Sawyer
have been answered and forwarded to Planning Office this morning. He added that all
comments from the Brunswick-Topsham Water District have also been responded to.

Mr. Van Note said he has a concern that we have a memo from staff dated today saying you
were doing the whole thing. He asked if the decision to do only 3a really came out in the past
5 days? Mr. Belanger said regarding performance guarantees, we (staff and developer) that it
made sense to do only the 3a 7 lots. Mr. Van Note said he is uncomfortable with hearing 95%
complete, plans need to be revised, memos out only today, blasting permit not requested. He
asked what will be the impact to wait two weeks to give you time to clean everything up which
is not yet cooked?

Planner Melanson said there is a process after approval. The applicant needs to get a plan
signed and then a follow-up pre-construction meeting needs to happen. Two-weeks should
give them time to clean everything up.

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES Page 3 0of 5
APRIL 6, 2021



APPROVED 4-20-21

Assistant Planner Deci added that the Planning Department was informed about the phasing
three weeks ago, but didn’t see any plans until a week and a half ago. We asked about surety
issues and we still haven’t seen any draft documents related to them. Tom Saucier has
indicated to me that he is comfortable for this being approved by the Board as a technical issue,
but my personal preference would be to hold off until everything is done.

Chairman Spann said he is leaning in the direction of tabling to next week as he has not had
time to read the e-mails and revised conditions that came in today.

Mr. Belanger said that tabling will impact Mr. Catlin as he has people all lined up. He said they
have gone through many rounds with the engineer and worked to answer all questions. He said
he believes technical comments are complete and plans can be ready tomorrow to submit to
the Town and take it from there. We still need to work on the performance guarantee and
spread sheet to contractor.

Mr. Brann asked what if 3b doesn’t get completed. Would we end up with a dead end road?
Mr. Belanger said a temporary turnaround will be built at the end of 3a. Mr. Brann was
satisfied with the response.

Motion was made by Mr. Van Note, seconded by Mr. Libby, and it was unanimously

VOTED
To table until the next meeting of the Planning Board in two weeks.

3. JM Bedford, LLC is requesting pre-application/sketch plan review for a 1,996 square
foot restaurant at 51 Topsham Fair Mall Road, Tax Map RO5B, Lot 9A1.

Curt Neufeld from Sitelines represented the applicant, JM Bedford, LLC, a franchise of Jersey
Mike’s Subs. Currently, there is a Jersey Mike’s Subs in South Portland. He gave a power
point presentation showing the location of the building between Highbrow and Norway
Savings Bank. The building is small, approximately 2,000 square feet. It will be a fast food
restaurant, served by public water and sewer. A subdivision amendment will be presented
evening up a couple of property lines and removing an easement.

Traffic movement was depicted on the plan showing approach to the take out window. The
food orders will be called in by customers and then pickup up at the window. The building
will only have seating for 12 seats inside. Placement of sidewalks was shown, although the
applicant would like to not have sidewalks in front of the building as requested in the ordinance
and would like to place plantings there. Mr. Neufeld said Jim Howard of The Priority Group
will be helping with the design of the project. The building has red awnings and red trim on
stucco and verset stone. Color scheme is red, white and blue. A Landscape Plan was shown
as was screening around the dumpster. There will be a 13°x26’ patio.

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES Page 4 of 5
APRIL 6, 2021



APPROVED 4-20-21

During discussion it was noted that the Topsham Fair Mall is within an impaired watershed,
which requires special attention to stormwater and pollutant loads during environmental
permitting. It appears the project does not generate enough trips to require a Traffic Movement
Permit from MDOT, but it must conform to the Town’s Impact Fee Ordinance at this location.

E. ADJOURN

Motion was made, seconded, and it was unanimously agreed to adjourn the meeting at 8:20 p.m.

Respectfully submitted,

Patty Williams, Recording Secretary

PLANNING BOARD MINUTES Page 50f 5
APRIL 6, 2021



